ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 17, 2016
1:34 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative David Tal erico, Co-Chair
Representati ve Bob Herron
Representative Craig Johnson
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton

Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak, Co-Chair
Representative M ke Hawker, Vice Chair

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 253

"An Act requiring the electronic filing of a tax return or
report with the Departnent of Revenue; establishing a civil
penalty for failure to electronically file a return or report;
relating to exenptions fromthe mning license tax; relating to
the mning license tax rate; relating to mning |icense
application, renewal, and fees; and providing for an effective
date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 253

SHORT TI TLE: ELCTRNC TAX RETURN, M NI NG LI C. TAX & FEES
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

01/19/ 16 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 16 (H) RES, FIN

02/ 15/ 16 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

02/ 15/ 16 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 16 (H) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 17/ 16 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- February 17, 2016



W TNESS REG STER

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comm ssioner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the governor, testified and
answer ed questions regardi ng HB 253.

BRANDON SPANCS, Deputy Director

Tax Divi sion

Depart nent of Revenue (DOR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the governor, testified and
answer ed questions regardi ng HB 253.

EDMUND FOGELS, Deputy Conm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: On behalf of the governor, testified and
answer ed questions regarding HB 253.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 34:15 PM

COCHAIR DAVID TALERICO called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Represent ati ves
Tal erico, Herron, Tarr, Josephson, Seaton, and dson were
present at the call to order. Representative Johnson arrived as
the neeting was in progress.

HB 253- ELCTRNC TAX RETURN, M NI NG LI C. TAX & FEES

1: 35: 19 PM

CO CHAI R TALERI CO announced that the only order of business is
HOUSE BILL NO. 253, "An Act requiring the electronic filing of a
tax return or report with the Departnent of Revenue;
establishing a civil penalty for failure to electronically file
a return or report; relating to exenptions from the mning
license tax; relating to the mning license tax rate; relating
to mning license application, renewal, and fees; and providing
for an effective date."

1: 35: 49 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- February 17, 2016



JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Depar t ment of Revenue (DOR), advi sed that during this
presentation the departnent will respond to various questions
submtted during a previous presentation. He referred to the
Al aska Departnent of Revenue, Tax Division, 2015 Annual Report,
which is also provided online, and said that Brandon Stanos w ||
speak to mning issues contained within the report.

1: 36: 26 PM

BRANDON SPANCS, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Departnent of
Revenue (DOR), brought attention to the division's 2015 Annual
Report. He explained that slide 5, "TAX RETURNS FILED by Tax
Program during Fiscal Year 2015," shows the mning tax returns
received, which is the nunber of volune of returns, and that
corporate incone tax receives nore tax returns that can be
el ectronic. He pointed to the mning license tax, shown in
yellow, and said it accounts for 2.14 percent of all of the tax
returns received.

MR. STANCS noved to slide 6, "STATEMENT OF REVENUES Listed in
order of total amount Fiscal Year 2015," and said it shows the
revenues collected and offers an idea of where the mning
license tax fits into the picture of revenue received by the
State of Alaska. QO & gas production tax is the |argest piece
of the pie chart, and the mning license tax, shown in [|ight
blue, is 3.24 percent of all of the revenues collected by the
Tax Division in fiscal year (FY) 2015. He noted that the
revenues depicted in later slides do junp around from year-to-
year. The mning tax is fairly unique in Alaska as it is based
on the net incone of the taxpayer, and other states tax by
wei ght of the product, or by the sales, or by gross incone.
M ning tax has been around for a long tinme and, because it is
based on the conpany's net inconme in a year, can vary from one
year to anot her.

1: 39: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether net inconme is an
annual cal cul ati on. He further inquired as to whether the |oss
is carry forward to a future year or whether a loss or
expenditure in one year is not further considered in the tax
cal cul ati on.

MR. SPANCS replied that the mning tax specifically is an annual
tax on a calendar year basis, or if a taxpayer reports fiscal

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- February 17, 2016



year federally then the taxpayer will report on a fiscal year.
Wth regard to corporate incone tax, there is a net operating
| oss carry back and carry forward. For the mning tax, if there
is aloss in one year the conpany will not pay a mning tax that
year, but there is no carry forward to another year.

1: 40: 00 PM

MR. SPANCS drew attention to slide 26, "Returns filed for FY
2015," and pointed out that it offers the description of mning
tax and rates. He noted that the $0-%$40,000 income bracket has
no incone tax and that the tax rate graduates with the net
i ncomre |evel. Governor Walker's bill, HB 253, proposes an
increase to the top bracket.

MR. SPANCS turned to the bottom of slide 27, "Tax Collections
Information from FY2012 - FY2015," and noted the graph is "the

neat of this part of the report for the mining tax." The graph
shows the general fund, Constitutional Budget Reserve (CBR)
Fund, and the tax collections. He explained that audits and

assessnments generally get transferred into the CBR Fund, and
refunds from sonething that went into the fund also cone out of
t hat fund. Tax collections for 2015 were $38 mllion in the
mning tax, but they do fluctuate fromyear to year depending on
the inconme reported on the tax returns for the state's
t axpayers. He added that the pie chart shows how that fits into
the overall tax collections, which is 3.24 percent of the tota
collections received in the tax division, and 96.76 percent for
al | others.

1:42: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested M. Spanos to repeat his
coments regarding the CBR Fund and how it works in conjunction
with the mning tax.

MR. SPANCS answered that the CBR is for resource - mning, oil
and gas. He offered his belief that the Alaska State
Constitution uses the word "disputed,” but has been interpreted
as an administrative proceeding. He explained that it begins as
an audit or assessnent in the form of a bill sent to the
t axpayer, who has appeal rights. There's a due process and if
there is a paynment on an assessnent it is transferred into the
CBRif it's related to the mning tax.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- February 17, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON observed that in FY 2015, $38 mllion
cane in statewide in an uncontested way, and $70,000 cane in
t hrough an adjudi cation and disposition after an audit.

MR SPANCS answered correct.
1: 43: 53 PM

MR. SPANCS turned to slide 27, "Returns filed for FY 2015," and
advised that in FY 2015 there were 468 taxpayers and 616 tax
returns. He explained that the tax returns included anended tax
returns from previous years, which are counted as a return
received in FY 2015. He noted that the mning tax is a license

tax - a license nmust be obtained with the division before
begi nning mning operations, which then requires the conpany to
file a tax return. In the event the conpany does not mne that
year, it nust still file a zero tax return with the division.

He pointed out that many of those returns are under $40,000 net
incone and the return shows no tax, but it does include
information on the face of the return. Most of the division's
information is confidential, although the |icenses are public
and avail able online. The information on the slide regarding
credits is outdated, he said, as a couple nore credits have been
added agai nst the mning tax.

1:45: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested a nore detailed explanation
regarding the tax credits, how they are applied, and to the
extent of how they can be appli ed.

MR. SPANCS responded that the Education Credit can be seen [on
slide 27]. Additionally, there is the Film Production Credit
that's available to take against the mning tax, as well as the
M nerals Exploration Incentive Credit,"” which is also available
onl i ne.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the Exploration Incentive
Credit under AS 27.30.010, which read:

(a) The comm ssioner shall grant to a person described
in (d) of this section an exploration incentive Credit
for the eligible costs of each of the followng
exploration activities that are performed on or for
the benefit of land in the state for the purpose of
determining the existence, | ocati on, ext ent, or
quality of a locatable or |easable mneral or coal

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- February 17, 2016



deposit, regardless of whether the land is state-owned
| and:

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the Exploration Incentive
Credit can be applied to any land within the state, whether
state, federal, Mental Health Trust, or privately owned | ands.
He therefore asked whether the state is providing a tax credit
where the state would not receive a royalty.

MR. SPANOS said he wll get back to the commttee with an
answer .

1: 48: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the Exploration Incentive
Credit applies to all lands within the state regardless of
whet her the state owns them and whether the state receives any
credit against tax. He said there was also a question about
royalties for which he thought the answer was no. He expressed
his concern that it applies under the statute to both the m ning
license tax and to royalties and during a tax year or a royalty
paynent period, so it appears that the 50 percent royalty or 50
percent tax applies to both royalty and to tax. He said he
would like to receive sone indication as to how these are
appl i ed because as he reads 27.30.050 it can be applied for 15
years carry forward but it doesn't have to be. It can be non-
consecutive years, so it can be applied whenever the conpany
desires for 15 years. And, he continued, it seens |ike that has
$20 mllion dollars, which has a large fiscal inplication to the
state's ability to receive revenue from any new nmine, both
revenue and tax, and if it's a credit against royalties, 50
percent of royalties, then it is also a question there.

MR. SPANOS answered that the credit can be taken against both
royalties and tax, but there's no double-dipping. It can be
taken against both in the sanme year if a conpany chooses, but
the statute doesn't identify which one it nust be taken agai nst

first. It is not like federal statute that often requires that
the credit nust be taken in a certain order against "this" first
and then "this" second. For this particular credit, he

continued, there is not an ordering, the taxpayer can choose to
take it against the royalties or against the tax, but cannot
take the sane amount - the form that the taxpayer fills out
starts to chip away at the credit and the taxpayer can only the
credit once.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- February 17, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that is how he read it, but said his
concern is that royalty is the state's ownership interest and
taking a tax credit against royalty actually neans that the
state is not only taking its taxing authority and reducing that,
but also reducing the paynment on ownership interest, or the
paynment on ownership interest. He said he would appreciate a
discussion at a future tinme on the applicability of the
Exploration Incentive Credit.

1: 52: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  JOSEPHSON asked whether the administration
scrutinized AS 27.30 in advance of offering the mning tax
| egi sl ation increase and whether reformwas called for.

MR. BURNETT responded that he was not aware of any specific
consideration to this, in that this Exploration Incentive Credit
has been in place a long tine and its existence is not
necessarily an issue relative to the tax because the purpose of
this is to increase the tax over tinme. It is not sonmething that
is looked at in terns of it reducing state taxes, but rather it
is looked at as nore of an incentive to produce nore revenue in
the future. He commented, "It's not a |arge anmount of dollars
that are actually been taken agai nst our taxes."

1:53: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON, relative to Representative Seaton's
corments regarding using credits in places where royalty is
earned and whether that is inconsistent with what is done on
oil, said he thinks it's not. He pointed out that credits are
offered on state |and. Whet her the policy should be different
for mning versus oil and gas is worthy of discussion. He noted
that credits are offered on state |and where the state earns a
royalty and asked whether Representative Seaton's view is that
there should be a different policy for m ning.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that normally on oil and gas
there are oil and gas production taxes, but it generally doesn't
apply to the royalty anounts. In this case, it is saying that
it applies to the state's ownership anount, or can be applied to
the state's ownership anbunt. He said that while the section of
the statute 1is open, the commttee should consider the
inplications for the State of Al aska, and whether that should be
appl i cabl e.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- February 17, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said Representative Seaton clarified
that this really is a different application as it is against the
royalty interest itself.

MR. BURNETT referred to oil and gas production taxes and said
the credits there apply on state and other |ands. Although nost
of the production value is on state land, the tax credits would
still be a credit against production from non-state |and because
the taxes are on non-state land as well, as long as it is
produced within the State of Al aska.

1:56: 43 PM

EDMUND FOGELS, Deputy Comm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR), said that with regard to
guestions previously asked, the commttee was provided with two

docunents of information: "Alaska Mne Production Figures,"
which is a sinple spreadsheet showing a five year |ookback on
all of the five mgjor hard rock mnes in Al aska, and the

production of the comodities depicting the anmount produced. He
said there is also a five year |ookback on the spot prices for
t hose commodities. He then related that Trustees For Al aska v.
State (1987) is the answer to Representative Hawker's question
rel evant to production royalties. He said, "The el evator speech
condensation is that prior to this |awsuit we were not charging
royalties for our mineral production; after this lawsuit went to
the State Suprene Court we were forced to pass our law in 1989
that instead of the 3 percent royalty." There's a lot nore in
this lawsuit than just that, he added, but it deals with Section
6(i) of the Alaska Statehood Act, [Public Law 85-508, 72 Stat.
339, July 7, 1958].

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON requested clarification as to whether
the state did not collect a royalty prior to instigation of the
aforenmentioned | awsuit.

MR. FOCELS replied, "W had sone kind of system where we were
of fsetting any kind of paynents with annual |abor and there was
no formal royalty. And so, that was challenged ... and then now
we have that royalty systemin place.”

1: 59: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the royalty itself was done by
statute by the State of Al aska. He understood that it canme up
because the state had to do sonething and no one wanted to spend
a lot of tinme because there were not many large mnes at the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- February 17, 2016



time. Therefore, 3 percent of the net operating just mrroring
the tax was thrown as a placeholder until people would devote
nmore tine to an adequate royalty system He asked whether this
is M. Fogels' understanding as well.

MR, FOGELS replied he has not had the opportunity to look into
the legislative history on that and therefore cannot conment as
to how that nunber was derived or whether it was tenporary in
intention, or too high, or too | ow

2:00: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said in noving forward, |ooking at the
appropriateness of having a net incone percentage representing
the royalty as opposed to something based on point of
production, or net snelter return, those kind of issues where
the state was receiving a return for the state's actual mnerals
and not for soneone's operating costs, and whether they are an
efficient or inefficient operator would harvest the sanme anount,
but it would very drastically change the state's royalty
pi cture. He said he was laying the issue of "what's an
appropriate royalty and an appropriate base for royalty" on the
tabl e, and encouraged the departnent to contri bute.

MR. FOGELS responded that over the years he has been at DNR he
has not been involved in any real hard discussions as to whether
3 percent was the right nunber, or whether the nethod of
cal cul ation was the right nunber. He opined that possibly part
of the reason is that there is currently only one nmne in Al aska
that that production royalty applies to in any neaningful way.
Pogo is the only mne currently on state land and there is not
anything in the pipeline for a hard rock mne that will cone on
line any tinme soon on general state |and.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained his reasoning is that if the
commttee is going to nake a change it should be done long in
advance so the people know. He reiterated that the state is
better off in considering whether the royalty is an appropriate
calculation, and to put one in if it's not an appropriate
cal cul ation, so everyone knows the game way ahead of tinmne.

2:03: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON referred to the decision in Trustees For
Al aska and noted that the nunber two plaintiff is from his
region, and then there is the rest of them He said, "It wasn't
that this group of people necessarily were |ooking out for

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- February 17, 2016



everybody and figuring that the mning industry needed to pay a
royalty.” He therefore asked what was beneath that and whet her
it was because of fish versus m ning.

MR. FOGELS said he is not famliar enough with the case to know
the nuts and bolts of what drove it, but he was never under the
inmpression that an environnental issue was a stake; his
inpression is that it was a fiscal issue.

2:04: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON referred to page 4, "Proceedings
Below," and said it describes that indeed this was about the
plaintiffs' assertion that the state didn't follow Section 6(i)
[ Alaska Statehood Act] and needed to collect a royalty. He
explained it wasn't a mning versus fishing dispute that was
presented to the court.

MR. FOGELS replied that is his understanding as well.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said he brought up the point because he
believes it is [a fiscal issue], but it is interesting that this
group of plaintiffs would feel it was their responsibility to
poi nt out that Section 6(i) is not equitable across the state.

2:05:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON, relative to the 3 percent and other
maj or mning states, asked whether there is some conparable rate
to the one-eighths that applies sonewhat nationwi de on oi
fields. Setting aside deductions, and credits, and the |ike, he
further asked whether there is a figure that other Rocky
Mount ai n producer states are using that Al aska is not using.

MR. FOGELS answered he doesn't know because he has not spent a
ot of tinme looking at royalties in other states since Al aska's
land situation is vastly different than other states. He
explained that sonme states don't have state |ands, and sone
don't have the subsurface, so a conparison is apples and oranges
for the nobst part. He said he is willing to spend nore tine
|l ooking into that if Representative Josephson desires, but said
he is uncertain how much good information could be obtained that
woul d be of use to the commttee.

2: 06: 52 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- February 17, 2016



REPRESENTATIVE TARR referred to the discussions regarding
adjustnments to the royalty rate or tax changes with regard to
the mnes in pre-permtting, such as N black and Bokan Mount ai n.
She inquired as to when those |eases are up for renewal and
whet her there m ght be an opportunity to make that adjustnent at
the tinme that those | eases are up for renewal.

MR. FOCGELS responded that N black and Bokan Mpuntain are on
federal |ands so the state would not receive royalty at all.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR posed an exanple of a mne |ocated on state
and and asked how it would work in ternms of the tineline of
when the state can actually nake a change.

MR. FOGELS asked whether Representative Tarr is asking when
could the state change the law to change the royalty rate for
state | ands.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR replied that that could be done at another
opportunity, and clarified that she would |like to understand the
timeline on the |eases, when the |ease renewal would cone up,
and how any underlyi ng changes woul d i npact that process.

MR. FOGELS replied the 3 percent is in statute and doesn't
change based upon |ease renewals. There is no opportunity to
change it other than by statute.

2: 08: 55 PM

REPRESENTATIVE TARR clarified she is trying to understand
whet her that would be a deterrent for sonmeone at the tinme of
| ease renewal in terns of re-evaluating the opportunity. She
asked whether that mght be when the state m ght see sonething
if people were going to depart from the activity they were
engaged in right now

MR. FOCELS suspected that once sonmeone invests a |lot of capita
in a mne operation there is a lot of nonentum there, and
therefore the conpany is going to keep operating it as long as

the econonmic conditions are favorable. There are probably a
mul titude of factors and the primary factor could be commodity
prices at the tine, and those factors will drive the conpany's

deci sion whether to continue. The renewal of a |lease or claim
is an insignificant cost conpared to operating the project.
Even if a conpany had to tenporarily shut down a mne, such as
the N xon Fork Mne, the conpany will probably keep its property

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- February 17, 2016



position legal and up-to-date. So, he continued, he doesn't
think that would really have a bearing on this.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR surmised that the | ease paynents are so | ow
relative to the opportunity that these changes are not going to
i npact the seven mnes that are listed in pre-permtting and not
operational while they nake calculations about the financial
viability of the project.

MR. FOCELS responded it is probably a very conplex decision for
the person holding the property. He noted that there are about
35,000 mning clainse in the state and said people stake new
clainms and relinquish clainms depending upon gold prices. People
make econom c deci sions every year when considering whether they
should maintain their claim position. He said he inmagines that
if there is sone change in the fiscal structure for the state it
woul d affect people's thinking on and some folks may be nore
inclined to shed their claimshould the fiscal structure change.

2:11: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted there are clains that are just being
hel d wi thout anything being done with the claim He suggested
that nmaybe the state would actually get nore mnes created if
there is a 3 percent net snelter return royalty because the
af orenenti oned owners would shed their clains and other mners
woul d come in who would actually nove forward and not just hold
a claim He described it as a hard nut to decide on, whether a
small increnental anmount that they have to pay the state is a
net negative or a net positive because it may |oosen up sone of
those clains and get those that are not going to be devel oped
rel i nqui shed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested that the departnent supply the
committee with what it knows about the other private royalties
in the state. Mental Health Trust's are not secret and it is 5
percent net snelter return or gross anount on the value of the
mnerals, and there are mnes occurring on Mntal Health Trust
| ands, and private lands where it's 4.5 percent net snelter
return. He said he would like to know the publically avail able
royalty terns and basis for the operating mnes to assist the
committee in determning what the appropriate basis is. He
suggested that if the appropriate basis for nbost of the existing
mnes to have up to 5 percent net snelter return, and the state
is not availing itself of those sane econom c conditions that
people go forward with and develop mnes on, then it would seem
that the state is leaving a lot on the table.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- February 17, 2016



MR. FOGELS replied that he wll find out what is publically
avai |l able, but suspected that nmuch of that is confidential
negoti ati ons between the m ning operator and the | and owner.

2:14: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether Canada, a pro-mning
country, uses a 10-15 percent net snelter return royalty or rate
and further asked how that equates with the 3 percent mning
license tax that Al aska uses on incone. He said he is curious
about the rel ative conparison of those.

MR. BURNETT noted that DOR provided the conmttee with reference
mat erial on Canadian mning taxes, and the materials my answer
his question. |If not, he said he will provide information.

2:15:37 PM

CO CHAI R TALERI CO expressed his appreciation for the efforts and
information from the departnment in so far as it is nearly
i npossible to create head-to-head conparisons when they are all
entirely different. He said one western state may charge a 5
percent net tax but have no corporate incone tax or no royalty
associated with the product, while others just have corporate
income tax and not the net tax, and sone are by tonnage. He
opined that Alaska is structured entirely differently than nost
of the other western states.

MR. BURNETT replied that DOR has provided the conmttee wth
conparisons of states' severance taxes, as well as non-petrol eum
corporate incone tax collections by sector for [Alaska] so it
can be seen how each sector over the past several years has
per f or med. He pointed out that the corporate incone tax on the

mnes in Alaska in 2010 was a negative $2.5 million but was $81
mllion in 2011, which really l|looks at the comodity price
wor |l dwi de and how it fluxuates. He said the department will

provide the conmittee with whatever information possible to
assist the conmmittee in making decisions.

2:17:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested an explanation of which credit
or which application got the state to a negative incone tax.

MR. BURNETT expl ained he cannot be specific as to each one, but
corporate incone taxes allow |osses from previous years to be

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- February 17, 2016



carried forward. He said, "You' re taxing on an allocation based

on the conpany's ... US. incone, so it is one where the |oss
could occur in Alaska, it could occur sonewhere else in the
previous year." Al of Alaska' s corporate inconme taxes are an

al |l ocation based on either worldwide or U S. incone.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON inquired  whet her it is worldw de
apportionment, but nost of the mnes were U S

MR. BURNETT offered his belief that the mning is US. inconeg,
and the oil and gas sector is worldw de.

MR. SPANCS added that there are sonetinmes very |arge anmended tax
returns that are refunds because a taxpayer may choose to change
its method of expenses or some other claim Normal |y the
departrment will refund those and then audit that at a later
period. So, it my be a large refund in one year, an audit, and
a claimin the next year or a future year. O, potentially, the
t axpayer and departnent agree and so it remains as a refund.

2:19: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the depreciation allowance
used in mning and the shifting from cost depletion to resource
depl eti on. He asked for an explanation as to how that affects
t he t axes.

MR. SPANCS said he would like to have the statute in front of
him to provide details, but explained that there is a depletion
al | onance dependi ng on what type of mneral a conpany is mning
in that there is a set amount in statute for percentage
depletion which, interestingly, can go over the actual costs

and then there is a cost depletion allowance which is usually
used in the industry.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested an explanation of what 1is
depl etion all owance and how it affects the taxes.

MR. SPANCS expl ai ned that the basic concept of depletion is that
there is a mneral in the ground and the conpany is depleting
that mneral, and the costs associated with getting at it so the

upfront expenditures, simlar to depreciation, is taking the
costs off each year as the resource is depleted. In the event
it is known how nmuch is in the ground, such as coal, it can be

depl eted over the |ife of the mne. The statute allows for coal
a specific percentage depletion, so it's not a traditional
depletion nmethod of saying it will last for 20 years and there

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -14- February 17, 2016



is this nmuch and then a dollar |imt s nmathematically
calculated to deplete each year. He offered his belief that the
statute reads 10 percent, and that 10 percent is allowed each
year regardless of how nuch depletion has actually been
cal cul ated on the conpany's books.

2:21:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON posed a scenario of a hard rock mne with
operational costs of $50 nmillion this year. He asked where the
depletion conmes into that and whether it w pes out the conpany's
expenses or is in addition to expenses, such as the conpany has

$1 billion worth of minerals in the ground and wll take 10
percent of that and these are the expenses, and the conpany
takes another $100 mllion of depletion and wites it off
against its incone. He asked whether the discussion is

basically taking an additional reduction in profitability.

MR. SPANCS confirmed that it is in addition to the conpany's
ot her expenses. He said depletion is its own |line item expense
that is used to cal cul ate net incone.

2:23: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said, "In our taxes we have cost depletion
which neans that you expect to spend the $1 billion over 10
years, let's say, and so you'd take off $100 mllion a year off

what your inconme is before paying taxes, or you can do resource
depletion which is after you ve like used up 50 percent of the
mnerals that are estimated to be there, then you reduce your
tax liability by 50 percent because you've used up 50 percent of
the mnerals.” He asked whether that is the resource depletion
cal culation.”

MR. SPANCS responded that he will get back to the commttee with
an answer.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated he thinks the conmttee should have
a presentation on how cost and resource depletion factor into
the state's taxes. He opined that the state is losing a |ot of
the taxable income because it is witten off - not only the
expenses to get the net incone and then there's either costs of
resource depletion applied to further reduce the taxable incomne
bef ore paying taxes, and this could be huge portion. He offered
his belief that Alaska is the only state in the nation that
allows conpanies to switch annually from cost depletion to
resource depletion depending upon which is nore advantageous to

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 15- February 17, 2016



reducing the conpany's tax liability to the state. He
reiterated that he would |ike the departnent to provide a slide
presentation with graphics so the commttee has an understandi ng
when di scussing whether the state is receiving its full revenue
that is due under the statute because the statute includes this
cost and revenue depletion allowance. He said that having an
understanding of how that works in the real world would be
hel pful to him

2:25:35 PM

COCHAIR TALERICO stated the conmittee won't ask for that
i medi ately in order to give the departnent sonme tine.

MR. SPANCS noted that Alaska is one of the only states that uses
the net income tax liability on mning, so the depletion is
usually a corporate incone tax nunber and "we do piggy back the
federal corporate income tax world" and the federal governnent
is very strict about not allowing a conpany to junp from one
met hod of depletion or depreciation to another. He related that
the mning incone tax is a very old tax and he does not know
what the Internal Revenue Service code | ooked |ike back when the
mning tax was brought on, but it is certainly a different world
now. He said the departnment will put together a presentation
t hat goes over the m ning nethodol ogy.

2:26:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR referred to the Alaska mne production
figures in the docunent provided by M. Fogels and said and
recalled that one of her earlier questions was that people are
trying to understand what inpact the changes will have on future
devel opnent opportunities. She observed that in 2013 Fort Knox
al nrost doubled its production for that calendar year and
inquired whether that increase was reflecting a high point in
commodity prices or was due to some other reason

MR. FOGELS replied that it could be a typographical error and
therefore he wll get back to the conmmttee. However, he
continued, such variations are typical and are based on a nunber
of factors such as what is going on in the mne, the deposit
itself, the kind of ore dug out, or issues wth production.
Typically a conpany is constantly trying to optimze its mlling
procedure and will find new ways to optimze to nmake it work
better. A change in the chemstry of the rock is another factor
that can cause things to change, or just the grade changes.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -16- February 17, 2016



Every truckload of ore pulled out of a mne has a different
concentration of the nmetal in it.

2:28:24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR referred to the oil and gas tax credits and
noted that a shortcoming in the legislature's work was that it
didn't nodel things along the whole range of prices and the
realities that are now being seen. Applying that thinking to
consideration of the mning tax, she recalled M. Fogels saying
that commodity price influences things nore than any of the
ot her underlying issues. Gven the great fluctuation in
commodity prices, she asked what resources are used by the
departnment to |look forward and meke predictions about what the
prices will be.

MR. FOCELS responded that, assumng a stable fiscal structure
commodity prices are probably the biggest driver for the mnes.
However, he advised, |arge changes to the fiscal structure could
easily over-shadow any changes in the commodity price. A nunber
of factors influence how much noney a mne nakes, with commodity

prices probably at the top of the Ilist. O her factors include
fuel prices and the cost of rubber for tires. For exanpl e,
Usi belli Coal Mne spends a |ot of nobney on truck tires and that
is a big cost driver in its operation. As far as what the

department does, he said nost of DNR s work is environnmental
with permts and regulating, so the comvodity prices are not
that big of a factor in DNR s day-to-day work. Were the
departnment sees the fiscal side is in the production royalty.
He reiterated that there is not an ongoing discussion of how to
propose changes to that royalty structure based on what DNR sees
commodity prices doing in the future.

MR. BURNETT added that for purposes of nodeling for the fisca
note, DOR s econom sts have used the futures prices and markets
rather than any kind of formal nodeling for future commodity
prices. He said DOR spends a lot of tinme on oil and gas prices
and doesn't get those right either, but DOR tends to do as well
as everybody el se does.

2:31:46 PM
REPRESENTATI VE TARR commented that the $6 mllion | ooks to be on
the low side relative to sone of the nore recent years. She

asked whether that was an attenpt to not get it wong and be
over-optim stic of what that m ght be.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -17- February 17, 2016



MR. BURNETT answered he did not meke that estimate hinself, but
commodity prices have been declining across the board over the
past several years. In 2014, the total incone from the |arge
m nes that would be subject to this tax, the 13 taxpayers that
were paying in the highest tax bracket, was $561 mllion net

inconme for tax purposes. He advised that $6 nmllion would
represent about a $300 million net profit for the |argest
t axpayers. That is certainly a difference in commodity prices

and costs because the other thing that affects these is that
costs of equipnment and so forth have been going up at a rate
faster than inflation. The departnment does have access to
t axpayer confidential tax return information which is used for
estimating future costs, et cetra. The departnent's econom sts
look at a whole variety of things but that's the range of
estimated net profits under the state's tax regine, which wll
vary widely year-to-year as it has in the past several years.

2:33:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON recalled M. Burnett saying that the
2011 corporate incone tax on hard rock mning was pretty sizable
because commodity prices were high. Theoretically, HB 253 would
generate about $6 million of new income for the state. He asked
how nmuch [HB 253] would generate in a high-end commodity year
and what the inpact would be on the industry.

MR. BURNETT replied he believes that information nay have been
provided in a letter that canme to the conmttee today.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON confirned that it was provided.

MR. BURNETT advised that the econom st performng the nodeling,
Wl Bishop, is in the room

2:34:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON asked why the proposed increase is from 7
to 9 rather than from7 to 8.5 or 7 to 10.

MR. BURNETT responded that tax policy is for a variety of
reasons. There was estimated incone at various price points or
tax rate points. This was discussed wth a group of people
within the admnistration, which included people from DNR and
the Departnent of Comrerce, Conmmunity & Econom c Devel opnent,
people famliar with the industry, and that's a decision that
t hese people cane up with. As to why that particular nunber, he
said there's probably nore art than science in sonme ways.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 18- February 17, 2016



REPRESENTATI VE HERRON said that begs the question then - if a
group of people threw a dart toward a target on the wall and
that was the best shot. It seens that to increase the taxes on
any industry there has to be a justification and an ability to
articulate an understanding of the industry and that the
i ndustry can bear an increase. He suggested that drilling down
and understanding the analysis will help in selling this tax to
the | egislature. It's inportant to legislators and industry to
under st and. He said it is inportant to be able to tell his
constituents, as well as his own conscience, that it wasn't just
a dart in a dart board.

2:37:29 PM

MR. BURNETT stated that the presentation is concluded and
offered his understanding that there will be public and other
additional testinony in the future.

CO CHAIR TALERICO noted that Alaska's climte and the weather
can create huge issues for mnes, particularly open pit mnes.
For exanple, there was record-setting rainfall in 2013 where
many of the nmines were |ocated. Al so, any |level of earthquake
unnerves everyone working in underground m nes and changes the
way a person works for a while. Mning is an interesting
i ndustry that can be inpacted with issues out of human control.

MR. FOGELS corrected the production figure for Fort Knox for the
year 2013 - it should be 428.822, not 728.822. He said he wll
further wverify the correct the nunmber and send an anended
docunent to the conmttee.

[ HB 253 was hel d over. ]

2:40: 23 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:40 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -19- February 17, 2016



